
 

 

 
APOLOGIES Committee Services   

Tel. 01621 876232   

    

    

   DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, 
PERFORMANCE AND 
GOVERNANCE’S OFFICE 

   DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE 
AND GOVERNANCE 
Paul Dodson 

    
   07 July 2020 

 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are summoned to attend the meeting of the; 
 
CENTRAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 
on WEDNESDAY 15 JULY 2020 at 1.00 pm. 
 
Please note that this will be a remote meeting – Member to access the meeting via Microsoft 
Teams.  Members of the press and public may listen to the live stream on the Council’s 
website:  
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=149&MId=2144 
 
A copy of the agenda is attached. 

 

Yours faithfully 

 
Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP CHAIRMAN Councillor M S Heard 

 VICE-CHAIRMAN Councillor S P Nunn 
   

 COUNCILLORS Miss A M Beale 

M R Edwards 

B E Harker 

K M H Lagan 

C Mayes 

C Morris 

N G F Shaughnessy 

Mrs J C Stilts 

C Swain 

 
Please note: Electronic copies are available via the Council’s website www.maldon.gov.uk. 

Unrestricted Document Pack

https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=149&MId=2144
http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



 

Page 3 

For further information please call 01621 876232 or 875791 

or see the Council's website – www.maldon.gov.uk. 

AGENDA 

CENTRAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY 15 JULY 2020 

 

1. Chairman's notices (please see overleaf)   

 

2. Apologies for Absence   

 

3. Minutes of the last meeting  (Pages 7 - 10) 

 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 12 June 2020, (copy 

enclosed). 

 

4. Disclosure of Interest   

 

 To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, other 

Pecuniary Interests or Non-Pecuniary Interests relating to items of business on the 

agenda having regard to paragraphs 6-8 inclusive of the Code of Conduct for Members. 

 

(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as 

soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting). 

 

5. 20/00210/HOUSE - 46 Wentworth Meadows, Maldon, Essex, CM9 6EJ  (Pages 11 - 

18) 

 

 To consider the report of the Director of Service Delivery (copy enclosed, Members’ 

Update to be circulated)*. 

 

6. Any other items of business that the Chairman of the Committee decides are 

urgent   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


Page 4 

 

 

Reports for noting: 

 

In accordance with the Council decision (Minute No. 542 refers), the following report is for 

noting and is available on the I drive for Members’ information. 

 Other Area Planning and Related Matters – Appeals Lodged and Appeal Decisions 

 

 

 
 

NOTICES 

 

Sound Recording of Meeting 

Please note that the Council will be recording and publishing on the Council’s website any 

part of this meeting held in open session.  At the start of the meeting an announcement will 

be made about the recording.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: 

1. The Council operates a facility for public participation. This will operate only in 

relation to the consideration and determination of planning applications under 

Agenda Item No. 5. 

2.  The Committee may consider representation from one objector, one supporter, a 

Parish / Town Council representative, and the applicant / agent. Please note that the 

opportunity to participate is afforded only to those having previously made written 

representation. 

3.  Anyone wishing to participate must register by completing the online form (link 

below) no later than noon on the working day before the Committee meeting 

www.maldon.gov.uk/publicparticipation. 

4.  For further information please ring 01621 875791 or 876232 or see the Council’s 

website – www.maldon.gov.uk/committees  

* Please note the list of related Background Papers attached to this agenda. 

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/publicparticipation
http://www.maldon.gov.uk/committees


Page 5 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

The Background Papers listed below have been relied upon in the preparation of this report: 

1. The current planning applications under consideration and related correspondence. 

2. All third party representations and consultation replies received. 

3. The following Statutory Plans and Supplementary Planning Guidance, together with 

relevant Government legislation, Circulars, Advice, Orders, Directions and Guidance: 

 

Development Plans 

 Maldon District Local Development Plan approved by the Secretary of State 21 July 

2017 

 Burnham-On-Crouch Neighbourhood Development Plan (2017) 

 

Legislation 

 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 

 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

 Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990 

 The Planning and Compensation Act 1991  

 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) 

 The Planning Act 2008 

 The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as 

amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 

Order 2010 

 The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regs 2007 

 The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regs 2011 

 Localism Act 2011 

 The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as 

amended) 

 Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013 

 Housing and Planning Act 2016 

 Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017 

 The Town and Country Planning (Brownfield Land Register) Regulations 2017 



Page 6 

Supplementary Planning Guidance and Other Advice 

i) Government policy and guidance  

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) - 2018 

 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)  

 Planning policy for Traveller sites - 2015 

 Relevant government circulars 

 Relevant Ministerial Statements (as referred to in the report) 

 Essex and South Suffolk Shoreline Management Plan – October 2010 

ii) Essex County Council 

 Essex Design Guide 1997 (Note: superseded by Maldon District Design Guide 2018) 

 Essex and Southend on Sea Waste Local Plan 2017 

 Essex Minerals Local Plan 2014 

iii) Maldon District Council 

 Five Year Housing Land Supply Statement 2017 / 18 

 Maldon District Design Guide – 2017 

 Maldon and Heybridge Central Area Masterplan - 2017 

 Infrastructure Delivery Plan (All versions, including update in Council’s 

Hearing Statement) 

 Infrastructure Phasing Plan (January 2015 and January 2017 update for 

Examination) 

 North Heybridge Garden Suburb Strategic Masterplan Framework - 2014 

 South Maldon Garden Suburb Strategic Masterplan Framework – 2014 

(adapted as Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2018) 

 Vehicle Parking Standards SPD - 2018 

 Renewable and Low Carbon Technologies SPD – 2018 

 Maldon District Specialist Housing SPD – 2018 

 Affordable Housing and Viability SPD – 2018 

 Accessibility to Buildings SPD – December 2006 

 Children’s Play Spaces SPD – March 2006 

 Sadd’s Wharf SPD – September 2007 

 Heybridge Basin Timber Yard SPD – February 2007 

 Developer Contributions Guide SPD - 2010 

 Heybridge Basin Village Design Statement – 2007 

 Wickham Bishops Village Design Statement – 2011 

 Woodham Walter Village Design Statement – 2011 

 Althorne Village Design Statement 

 Woodham Walter Village Design Statement 

 Various Conservation Area Appraisals 

 

All Background Papers are available for inspection at the Maldon District Council Offices, 

Princes Road, Maldon, Essex CM9 5DL during normal office hours. 



 

1 

MINUTES of 

CENTRAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

12 JUNE 2020 

 

PRESENT 

 

Chairman Councillor M S Heard 

Vice-Chairman Councillor S P Nunn 

Councillors M R Edwards, C Mayes, C Morris, Mrs J C Stilts and C Swain 

In Attendance 

 

Councillor W Stamp and Mrs M E Thompson 

1. CHAIRMAN'S NOTICES  

 

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the first remote meeting of this committee, held 

under new regulations which came into effect on 4 April 2020 in response to the 

COVID-19 pandemic. He took Members through some general housekeeping issues, the 

etiquette for the meeting and asked all Officers present to introduce themselves.  

 

This was followed by a roll call of all Members present. 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

There were none. 

 

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  

 

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 19 February 

2020 be approved and confirmed. 

 

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST  

 

At this point the Chairman sought clarification that the second application -

20/00322/FUL – Deed House, 21 London Road, Maldon, had been withdrawn. The 

Lead Specialist Place confirmed, as outlined on the Member’s Update, that the applicant 

had withdrawn the application. 

 

Councillor S P Nunn declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 5 – 

19/01242/HOUSE -  56 Viking Road, Maldon, as he knew the applicant. 

 

Councillor J C Stilts declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 5 -

19/01242/HOUSE - 56 Viking Road, Maldon, as she knew the applicant. 

Unrestricted Document Pack

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



2 

Councillor M S Heard declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 5 – 

19/01242/HOUSE - 56 Viking Road, Maldon, as he knew the applicant through other 

contacts.  

 

5. 19/01242/HOUSE - 56 VIKING ROAD, MALDON  

 

Application Number 19/01242/HOUSE 

Location 56 Viking Road, Maldon 

Proposal First floor extension and alterations. 

Applicant Mr Jalal Uddin 

Agent Mr Mark Crocker  

Target Decision Date 30.06.2020 

Case Officer Louise Staplehurst 

Parish Maldon West 

Reason for Referral to the 

Committee / Council 

Member Call In by Councillor Mayes 

Reason: Policies D1 and H4 of the LDP. 

 

Following the Officer’s presentation, the Chairman advised Members that in line with 

the Council’s public participation scheme a submission had been received from three 

Objectors to the application, Sue Seabrook, John Watson and Gillian Smith.  In 

accordance with the scheme’s criteria he had reviewed the submission and then read it 

aloud to the Committee. 

 . 

The Chairman moved the recommendation as set out in the Officer report and reminded 

Members that only those attending the site visit could vote on the application. This was 

seconded by Councillor Swain. 

 

At this point Councillor Morris declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item as he 

knew the applicant. 

 

The Chairman then invited comment on the application. Councillor Mayes said she 

supported the Officer’s recommendation. Councillor Swain concurred and said that 

there would be difficulty accommodating additional vehicles and a detrimental impact 

on neighbouring properties.  

 

The Chairman put the Officer’s recommendation of refusal to the Committee. Upon a 

vote being taken the application was refused. 

 

RESOLVED that the application be REFUSED for the following reasons: 

 

1 The proposed side and rear extension, by reason of its scale and design, is 

considered to be a large and bulky addition, which would result in a harmful 

impact on the character and appearance of the host dwelling and the surrounding 

area. Furthermore, the design would result in an awkward and contrived roofline 

to the front. The proposal would therefore be contrary to policies D1 and H4 of 

the Maldon District Local Development Plan and the guidance contained within 

the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 8



3 

2 The proposed side and rear extension, due to its bulk and depth, is considered to 

have an overbearing impact on the neighbouring site to the east, No.54 Viking 

Road. The proposal would therefore result in an unneighbourly form of 

development, which would have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity 

of this neighbour and therefore the proposed extension would be contrary to 

policies D1 and H4 of the Maldon District Local Development Plan and the 

guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 

6. 20/00322/FUL - DEED HOUSE, 21 LONDON ROAD, MALDON, ESSEX  

 

Application Number 20/00322/FUL 

Location Deed House, 21 London Road, Maldon, Essex 

Proposal Replacement windows 

Applicant Ms Anne Shields – Maldon Housing Association 

Agent N/A 

Target Decision Date 22.05.2020 

Case Officer Annie Keen 

Parish MALDON NORTH 

Reason for Referral to the 

Committee / Council 

Member Call In – Councillor Mayes 

Reason - D1 and D3 

 

It was noted from the Members’ Update that this application had been withdrawn by the 

Applicant.  

 

7. ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS  

 

The Chairman, referring to the Enforcement report scheduled for the February meeting 

of this committee that was cancelled due to the pandemic, asked the Lead Specialist 

Place for an update.  

 

The Lead Specialist Place advised that it may be better to cover this issue in a remote 

meeting as opposed to a remote committee due to resource constraints. He said he 

would convene a remote meeting in the near future and asked that Members raise any 

specific enforcement questions or issues they were aware of in advance of the meeting. 

This would ensure that all necessary information would be available and result in a 

productive session. 

 

The Chairman asked who best to direct questions to and it was agreed that, in this 

instance, Members email Michael Johnson, Lead Specialist: Development Management. 

 

There being no further items of business the Chairman closed the meeting at 1.25 pm. 

 

 

 

M S HEARD 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 

REPORT of 

DIRECTOR OF SERVICE DELIVERY 

to 

CENTRAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

15 JULY 2020 

 

Application Number 20/00210/HOUSE 

Location 46 Wentworth Meadows, Maldon, Essex, CM9 6EJ 

Proposal 
First floor extension over existing garage. part single storey part 

two storey rear extension 

Applicant Mr Jack Ellum 

Agent N/A 

Target Decision Date EOT 17.07.2020  

Case Officer Annie Keen 

Parish MALDON NORTH 

Reason for Referral to the 

Committee / Council 

Councillor / Member of Staff 

 

1. RECOMMENDATION 

 

REFUSE for the reasons as detailed in Section 8 of this report. 

 

 

2. SITE MAP 

 

Please see overleaf. 

 

  

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

  

Page 12



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

3. SUMMARY 

 

3.1 Proposal / brief overview, including any relevant background information 

 

3.1.1 The application site is located on the north western side of Wentworth Meadows, 

within the settlement boundary of Maldon.  The building on-site is a two-storey 

detached dwelling with a salt box style roof, constructed of a light-coloured brick with 

green hanging tiles to the front elevation and white fenestration.  The dwelling, which 

is of a different design to the dwellings in the surrounding area, is set back from the 

streetscene with an adjoining garage with a low mono-pitched roof. 

 

3.1.2 Planning permission is sought for the construction of a first floor extension with a 

pitched roof over the existing side garage projection.  Further permission is sought for 

a two storey rear extension with a single storey element that would wrap around the 

dwelling in a ‘L’ shape.  The proposed single storey extension would have a flat roof 

with rooflights. 

 

3.1.3 The proposed first floor side extension would measure 2.6 metres in width and 7.7 

metres in depth with a maximum eave’s height of 4.3 metres and a ridge height of 6.2 

metres. 

 

3.1.4 The proposed two storey rear extension would measure 5.6 metres in width and 2.5 

metres in depth with a maximum eave’s height of 4.3 metres and a ridge height of 7.4 

metres.  The proposed single storey element would measure 8.8 metres in width and a 

maximum of 4.2 metres in depth with a flat roof height of 3.2 metres. 

 

3.1.5 It is noted the plans state the proposed width of the two storey projection is 5.3 metres 

however this element of the plans measures at 5.6 metres. 

 

3.1.6 The proposed materials would be brick with roofing tiles and uPVC and aluminium 

windows and doors. 

 

3.2 Conclusion 

 

3.2.1 It is considered, the proposed development due to the depth of the proposed rear 

extension, the proposed height of the two storey element and the width of the first 

floor side projection, would result in a dominant addition to the site, detrimentally 

impact upon the character and appearance of the host dwelling and the streetscene.  

Furthermore, the proposal would result in a shortfall in private amenity space and in 

an overbearing form of development, to the detriment of the neighbouring bungalows 

to the south west and the dwellings to the north east.  The proposed development is 

therefore contrary to policies D1 and H4 of the Local Development Plant (LDP) and 

the guidance set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 

 

4. MAIN RELEVANT POLICIES 

 

Members’ attention is drawn to the list of background papers attached to the agenda. 

 

 

 

Page 13



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

4.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2019 including paragraphs: 

 7  Sustainable development 

 8  Three objectives of sustainable development 

 10 – 12  Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

 38  Decision-making  

 47 – 50  Determining applications 

 54 – 57  Planning conditions and obligations 

 117 – 123 Making effective use of land  

 124 – 132 Achieving well-designed places 

 

4.2 Maldon District Local Development Plan 2014 – 2029 approved by the Secretary 

of State: 

 S1  Sustainable Development  

 S8  Settlement Boundaries and the Countryside  

 D1  Design Quality and Built Environment 

 H4  Effective Use of Land 

 T1  Sustainable Transport 

 T2  Accessibility  

 

4.3 Relevant Planning Guidance / Documents: 

 Planning Policy Guidance (PPG) 

 Maldon District Design Guide (MDDG) 

 Maldon District Vehicle Parking Standards SPD (VPS) 

 

5. MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

 

5.1 Principle of Development 

 

5.1.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, Section 70(2) of 

the 1990 Act and paragraph 47 of the NPPF require that planning applications are 

determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise.  In this case the development plan comprises of the approved 

LDP. 

 

5.1.2 The principle of extending and altering an existing dwellinghouse and of providing 

facilities in association with residential accommodation is considered acceptable in 

line with policies S1 and H4 of the approved LDP. 

 

5.2 Design and Impact on the Character of the Area 

 

5.2.1 The planning system promotes high quality development through good inclusive 

design and layout, and the creation of safe, sustainable, liveable and mixed 

communities.  Good design should be indivisible from good planning.  Recognised 

principles of good design seek to create a high quality built environment for all types 

of development. 

 

5.2.2 It should be noted that good design is fundamental to high quality new development 

and its importance is reflected in the NPPF.  The NPPF states that: 

Page 14



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

 

“The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the 

planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of 

sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps 

make development acceptable to communities”. 

 

“Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the 

opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the 

way it functions”. 

 

5.2.3 This principle has been reflected in the approved LDP.  The basis of policy D1 of the 

approved LDP seeks to ensure that all development will respect and enhance the 

character and local context and make a positive contribution in terms of:-  

 

a) Architectural style, use of materials, detailed design features and construction 

methods.  Innovative design and construction solutions will be considered 

where appropriate; 

b) Height, size, scale, form, massing and proportion; 

c) Landscape setting, townscape setting and skylines; 

d) Layout, orientation, and density; 

 

5.2.4 Similar support for high quality design and the appropriate layout, scale and detailing 

of development is found within the MDDG. 

 

5.2.5 In addition, policy H4 requires all development to be design-led and to seek to 

optimise the use of land having regard, among others, to the location and the setting 

of the site, and the existing character and density of the surrounding area.  The policy 

also seeks to promote development which maintains, and where possible enhances, 

the character and sustainability of the original building and the surrounding area; is of 

an appropriate scale and design that makes a positive contribution to the character of 

the original building and the surrounding area and where possible enhances the 

sustainability of the original building; and does not involve the loss of any important 

landscape, heritage features or ecology interests. 

 

5.2.6 The proposed development would consist of a first floor projection over the existing 

garage, a two storey rear projection extended from the ridge of the dwelling and a 

single storey wrap around extension, creating an additional bedroom at first floor 

level and additional living space at ground floor level. 

 

5.2.7 The proposed development due to its scale and design would form a large and bulky 

addition to the dwelling, particularly due to the depth of the proposed rear extension, 

the proposed height and depth of the two storey rear element and the width and depth 

of the first floor side projection.  Whilst it is acknowledged the existing dwelling does 

not follow the design cues of the streetscene and therefore cannot be expected to 

appear similar in appearance to neighbouring dwellings, the resultant dwelling would 

appear dominant within the site, to the detriment of the character of the host dwelling.  

Furthermore, due to the dwellings prominent position within this section of 

Wentworth Meadows and due to it being highly visible from St Peters Avenue, the 

proposed development would detrimentally impact upon the character and appearance 

of the streetscene. 

  

Page 15



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

5.2.8 Whilst no objections are raised regarding the proposed use of brick and roofing tiles, 

little detail is provided and therefore if the application was to be approved a condition 

would be imposed to ensure the materials matched that of the existing dwelling. 

 

5.3 Impact on Residential Amenity 

 

5.3.1 The basis of policy D1 in the approved LDP seeks to ensure that development will 

protect the amenity of its surrounding areas taking into account privacy, overlooking, 

outlook, noise, smell, light, visual impact, pollution, daylight and sunlight.  This is 

supported by section C07 of the MDDG.  Similarly, policy D2 of the approved LDP 

requires all development to minimize all forms of possible pollution including air, 

land, water, odour, noise and light.  Any detrimental impacts and potential risks to the 

human and natural environment will need to be adequately addressed by appropriate 

avoidance, alleviation and mitigation measures. 

 

5.3.2 The proposed development would be situated along the south western boundary 

shared with No.43 and No.45 St Peter’s Avenue and would be a minimum of 10 

metres from these dwellings.  The plans show there are no windows proposed in the 

side elevation facing the neighbouring dwellings and therefore the proposal would not 

result in overlooking of the neighbouring occupiers and due to its position would not 

result in overshadowing.  However, due to the proposed increase in height and depth 

of the built form along the boundary and the single storey nature of the neighbouring 

dwellings, the proposed development would appear dominant, resulting in an 

overbearing form of development. 

 

5.3.3 The proposed development would be situated approximately 1.8 metres from the 

boundary to the north west shared with No.42 and No.44 Wentworth Meadows and a 

minimum of 9.5 metres from those same dwellings.  The plans show there are no 

windows proposed in the north western elevation and therefore the development 

would not result in overlooking of the neighbouring occupiers and due to the position 

of the dwelling the development would not result in overshadowing.  However, due to 

the proximity of the development to the neighbouring dwellings and the depth of the 

proposed 2 storey rear extension, the development would appear overbearing. 

 

5.3.4 The development would be situated 5 metres from the boundary shared with No.40 

Wentworth Meadows, to the north west of the site and would be approximately 14.5 

metres from that same dwelling.  Due to the separation distance it is considered the 

proposed development would not detrimentally impact upon the amenity of the 

neighbouring occupiers by way of overlooking, overshadowing or being unduly 

overbearing. 

 

5.3.5 The proposed development site would be situated approximately 15.9 metres from the 

dwellings to the south east, No.99-103 Wentworth Meadows.  Due to the separation 

distance it is considered the proposed development would not detrimentally impact 

upon the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers by way of overlooking or 

overshadowing. 

 

5.4 Access, Parking and Highway Safety 

 

5.4.1 Policy T1 of the approved LDP seeks to create additional sustainable transport 

opportunities.  Policy T2 aims to create and maintain an accessible environment, 

Page 16



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

requiring development proposals, inter alia, to provide sufficient parking facilities 

having regard to the Council’s adopted parking standards.  The Council’s adopted 

VPS SPD contains the parking standards which are expressed as minimum standards.  

Similarly, policy D1 of the approved LDP seeks to include safe and secure vehicle 

and cycle parking having regard to the Council’s adopted parking standards and 

maximise connectivity within the development and to the surrounding areas including 

the provision of high quality and safe pedestrian, cycle and, where appropriate, horse 

riding routes. 

 

5.4.2 The proposed development would increase the number of bedrooms on site from three 

to four.  The required number of car parking spaces for a dwelling of three bedrooms 

is two spaces, whilst the required number of spaces for a four bedroomed dwelling is 

three spaces.  The VPS SPD states each space is required to measure 2.9 metres in 

width by 5.5 metres in depth.  The submitted ‘Plot Plan’ shows three spaces to the 

front of the dwelling and there is an existing garage to the south west of the dwelling, 

however, the spaces indicated on the plan are smaller than that stipulated within the 

VPS SPD. Whilst the existing garage and parking spaces are smaller than required, it 

is considered the garage would still be able to provide a space for a car and whist the 

area to the front of the dwelling would not be able to provide space for three vehicles 

of the required size, there would be space for two vehicles.  Due to this the proposed 

development would be in accordance with policies D1 and T2 of the LDP. 

 

5.5 Private Amenity Space and Landscaping 

 

5.5.1 Policy D1 of the approved LDP requires all development to provide sufficient and 

usable private and public amenity spaces, green infrastructure and public open spaces.  

In addition, the adopted MDDG advises a suitable garden size for each type of 

dwellinghouse, namely 100m
2
 of private amenity space for dwellings with three or 

more bedrooms, 50m
2
 for smaller dwellings and 25m

2
 for flats. 

 

5.5.2 It is noted that the application site currently has 95.4m
2
 of private amenity space, 

which whilst it is less than the 100m
2
 required under the standards set out within the 

Maldon Design Guide, it is not significantly less. 

 

5.5.3 The resulting private amenity space after the proposed development would be 59.7m
2
, 

which would be significantly under the 100m
2
 standards for a dwelling of this size.  It 

is therefore considered that the resulting level of private amenity space will 

detrimentally impact on the quality of life of the future occupiers of the dwelling and 

therefore would be contrary to policy D1 of the LDP. 

 

6. ANY RELEVANT SITE HISTORY 

 

6.1 There is no relevant planning history for the site. 

 

7. CONSULTATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 

 

7.1 Representations received from Parish / Town Councils 

 

Page 17



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

Name of Parish / Town 

Council 
Comment Officer Response 

Maldon Town Council Support Noted 

 

7.2 Representations received from Interested Parties  

 

7.2.1 9 letters were received in support of the application and the reasons for support are 

summarised as set out in the table below: 

 

Supporting Comment Officer Response 

Comments have been submitted from several 

neighbouring occupiers in support of the development 

stating it would not impact upon their dwellings or the 

streetscene. 

Comments noted 

 

8. REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

1 The proposed development by reason of its scale and design would result in a 

large, dominant and bulky addition, particularly due to the depth of the 

proposed rear extension, height and depth of the two storey rear element and 

the height, depth and width of the first floor side projection.  The development 

would therefore appear dominant within the site, resulting in demonstrable 

harm to the character and appearance of the existing dwelling and the locality, 

contrary to policies D1 and H4 of the LDP and the Maldon Design Guide.  

 

2 The proposed development would result in an unacceptable level of private 

amenity space which is considered to detrimentally impact on the quality of 

life of the current and future occupiers of the dwelling, contrary to policy D1 

of the Maldon District Local Development Plan, guidance contained within 

the Maldon District Design Guide and guidance contained within the National 

Planning Policy Framework.  

 

3 The proposed development by virtue of its depth, height and proximity to the 

boundary shared with the neighbouring dwellings to the south west and north 

east, would result in an overbearing impact to the detriment of the residential 

amenities of those neighbouring occupiers.  The proposal is therefore contrary 

to policies D1 and H4 of the Maldon District Local Development Plan and the 

guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	Minutes

	5 20/00210/HOUSE - 46 Wentworth Meadows, Maldon, Essex, CM9 6EJ

